
Agenda compiled by:
Phil Garnett
Governance Services
Tel:  395 1632

Produced on Recycled Paper
1

MEMBER MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds, LS1 1UR on
Tuesday, 23rd February, 2016

at 3.00 pm

MEMBERSHIP

Councillors

R Charlwood 
(Chair)
M Ingham
A Khan
J Lewis
A McKenna
B Selby
A Smart

C Campbell A Lamb
G Latty

T Leadley A Blackburn

Public Document Pack



2

A G E N D A

Item
No

Ward Item Not
Open

Page
No

1  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS

To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 15,2 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules. (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded)

(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 15.2, written 
notice of an appeal must be received by the Head 
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before 
the meeting.)

2  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

1 To highlight reports or appendices which 
officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report.

2 To consider whether or not to accept the 
officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information.

3 If so, to formally pass the following 
resolution:-

RESOLVED – That the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:-



3

3  LATE ITEMS

To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration

(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes)

4  DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
INTERESTS

To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable 
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31 
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-16 of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct.  

5  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.

6  MINUTES - 15TH SEPTEMBER 2015

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 15th September 2015

1 - 4

7  INFORMATION GOVERNANCE TRAINING

To receive a report of the Chief Officer (Intelligence 
& Improvement) which seeks support for a 
programme to deliver essential training and 
development for Members on Information 
Governance, with particular emphasis on handling 
personal data and compliance to the Data 
Protection Act.

5 - 10

8  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

To Be Confirmed.

Item
No

Ward Item Not
Open

Page
No



4

Third Party Recording 

Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable those not present to see or 
hear the proceedings either as they take place (or later) and to enable the 
reporting of those proceedings.  A copy of the recording protocol is available 
from the contacts named on the front of this agenda.

Use of Recordings by Third Parties– code of practice

a) Any published recording should be accompanied by a statement of 
when and where the recording was made, the context of the 
discussion that took place, and a clear identification of the main 
speakers and their role or title.

b) Those making recordings must not edit the recording in a way that 
could lead to misinterpretation or misrepresentation of the 
proceedings or comments made by attendees.  In particular there 
should be no internal editing of published extracts; recordings may 
start at any point and end at any point but the material between 
those points must be complete.

Item
No

Ward Item Not
Open

Page
No



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting 
to be held on Tuesday, 23rd February, 2016

MEMBER MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

TUESDAY, 15TH SEPTEMBER, 2015

PRESENT: Councillor R Charlwood in the Chair

Councillors A Blackburn, C Campbell, 
M Dobson, B Gettings, M Ingham, A Khan, 
A Lamb, G Latty, J Lewis, A McKenna and 
A Smart

10 Appeals Against Refusal of Inspection of Documents 

There were no appeals against the refusal of inspection of documents.

11 Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public 

There were no resolutions to exclude the public.

12 Late Items 

The Chair admitted one late item of business to the agenda.The report set out 
the process for nominating local authority governors to academies and free 
schools and was required at this meeting at the request of the Committee. 
A copy of the report had been circulated to committee Members in advance of 
the meeting and published on the Council’s website.

13 Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

No declarations were made.

14 Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Dawson, Leadley and 
Selby (Councillors Ingham, Gettings and M Dobson were in attendance as 
substitutes) 

15 Minutes - 7th July 2015 

RESOLVED – The minutes of the meeting held on 7th July 2015 were 
approved as a correct record.

16 Matters Arising 

Local Authority Appointments to Outside Bodies - members noted that officers 
had not needed to contact Leeds Mind regarding the possibility of an 
additional place for the Labour Group as the Group were happy with the 
Council having one place which has been allocated by this Committee to the 
Green Group.  

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting 
to be held on Tuesday, 23rd February, 2016

17 Late Item - The process for nominating local authority governors to 
academies and free schools 

Further to the meeting held on the 7th July 2015 the Governor Support Service 
Children’s Services submitted a report to the Committee informing Members 
of the legislative changes to the appointment of LA governors to academies 
and free schools, the current legislation for the allocation of local authority 
seats to particular political groups and recommending that a simpler 
appointment process be considered for the nomination/appointment of LA 
governors to academies and free schools.

Detailed discussion followed on this report, particularly in respect of the need 
for officers to have a dialogue with academies and free schools with a view to 
explaining the benefits of having Local Authority representatives serving on 
their Governing Bodies.   

RESOLVED – 

(a) That the report to modify the nomination/appointment of LA governors to 
Academies and free schools be supported and to note that the Member 
Management Committee would no longer act as the appointing body for 
such school types.

(b) That the relevant officers within the Children’s Services Department carry 
out a piece of work that;
 Will allow an understanding as to why academies and free schools 

currently do not have/want Local Authority representatives.
 Will identify what could be done to encourage academies and free 

schools to appoint Local Authority representatives.

During discussion on the item above Councillor A Blackburn arrived at 3.10pm 
and Councillor Campbell arrived at 3.20pm.

18 Members Mandatory Safeguarding Training 

The City Solicitor submitted a report outlining the proposed safeguarding 
training and seeking approval of Member Management Committee to make 
the training mandatory for all Members.  

It was agreed by all members that training on safeguarding was something 
that all members should take part in, but members recognised that there were 
no sanctions available to full Council that could be used to require Member 
attendance.

However the Chair informed the Committee that the administration felt that 
this issue was of such significance that the training should be mandatory and 
enforced by whips via their internal group arrangements, not all Members 
were supportive of this approach and therefore as a compromise the word 
essential was agreed upon, and it was. 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting 
to be held on Tuesday, 23rd February, 2016

RESOLVED – 
(a) That safeguarding training for all members be deemed as essential for all 

Members, with take up by Members overseen by Group Whips.  
(b) That a report be brought back to a meeting of this Committee setting out 

the detail of the training. 
(c) That further reports on the uptake of training be provided to Group Whips 

and Leaders.  

 
19 Local Authority Appointments to Outside Bodies 

The City Solicitor submitted a report which provided an update on the current 
position regarding member appointments to outside bodies; and sought to 
confirm Member nominations to remaining vacancies.

Members considered a number of issues in respect of appointment to Outside 
Bodies and: 

RESOLVED – 

a) To note the current position in relation to elected member 
appointments to outside bodies.

b) That the vacancy identified on the Private Rented Sector Forum be 
allocated to the Green Group.

c) That the position in respect of appointments to the Leeds College of 
Building be noted.

d) That the position in respect of appointments to IGEN be noted.
e) That the position in respect of appointments to the Equality and BME 

Governor’s Network be noted.
f) That the position in respect of appointments to Leeds Mind be noted.
g) That the appointments made since July 2015 and set out in the report 

be noted. 

20 Date and Time of Next Meeting 

3.00pm Tuesday 23rd February 2016. 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Report of: Chief Information Officer 

Report to: Member Management Committee

Date: 23rd February 2016

Subject: Information Governance Training

Are specific electoral Wards affected?   Yes   No

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration?

  Yes   No

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:

Appendix number:

Summary of main issues

1. The Data protection Act sets out individuals’ and organisations’ legal 
responsibilities with regard to people’s personal data. These responsibilities 
are enforced by the Information Commissioners’ Office (ICO) who have the 
power to impose monetary penalties of up to £500,000 for serious information 
security breaches.

2. Elected Members deal on a daily basis with personal data and sensitive 
personal data.

3. This report recommends providing Elected Members with suitable training and 
development to mitigate against and reduce the risk of Member involvement 
in an information incident.

Recommendations

Member Management Committee is asked to note the contents of the report 
and support and approve the proposals to train Members on information 
governance as outlined in this report.

Report author:  Carol Dunn
Tel:  0113 378 4574

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



1 Purpose of this report

1.1 To seek support for a programme to deliver essential training and 
development for Members on Information Governance, with particular 
emphasis on handling personal data and compliance to the Data Protection 
Act.

2 Background information

2.1        The Data Protection Act controls how personal information is processed and 
stored by organisations. Everyone responsible for handling personal 
information has to follow rules known as the Data Protection Principles and 
ensure that information is processed and used fairly and lawfully. 

2.2 The Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) is an executive non-
departmental public body, sponsored by the Department for Culture, Media 
and Sport. The ICO upholds information rights in the public interest, 
promotes openness by public bodies and data privacy for individuals. The 
ICO has powers to take action to change the behaviour of organisations and 
individuals that collect, use and keep personal information, including 
criminal prosecution, non-criminal enforcement and audit. The ICO also has 
the power to serve a monetary penalty notice on a data controller. 

2.3 In order to reduce the likelihood of enforcement action, the ICO 
recommends that data controllers deliver regular training about handling and 
processing personal data and the data protection principles within its 
organisation. To this end, all council staff undertake mandatory training on 
information governance and data protection every two years. In addition, 
staff who work with highly sensitive information receive additional classroom 
based training. This is important in order to ensure that all staff are aware of 
their responsibilities in respect of information governance and can take 
steps to avoid information security breaches. Furthermore, the council has 
provided an assurance to the ICO that staff will undertake regular IG training 
following a data protection audit conducted in 2013 by the Information 
Commissioner’s auditors. .

2.4 Due to the nature of the work they do Members have access to and process 
personal and sensitive personal information which must be processed in 
accordance to the Data Protection Act. Members have more than one role; 
local councillors for a particular ward; membership of a political party; and 
members of various council committees, boards and groups, all of which will 
have them processing personal information in a different capacity. 

2.5 The risks around information governance are often heightened for an 
Elected Member as a result of their public profile, media interest in their 
work and the sheer volume of correspondence exchanged with residents 
and organisations locally, regionally and nationally. 

2.6 All LCC Members are annually registered with the ICO by the council as the 
Data Protection Act requires every data controller who is processing 

Page 6



personal data to register notification of this with the ICO. Members are 
considered to be data controllers in their own right when processing 
personal data on ward constituency matters. 

3 Main issues

3.1 There have been many high profile information incidents reported by the 
media whereby the ICO has implemented enforcement action on 
organisations as a result of a security breach involving personal information, 
and the ICO has the power to issue a monetary penalty notice of up to 
£500,000. There are a number other tools available to the ICO for taking 
action to change the behaviour of organisations and individuals that collect, 
use and keep personal data, including prosecution of those who commit a 
criminal offence under the Act, issue of undertakings committing an 
organisation to a particular course of action in order to improve compliance 
and audit.

  3.2 Furthermore the Data Protection Act allows an individual to ask for any 
information held about them, or in which they are mentioned, including 
information contained in emails. In addition the Freedom of Information Act 
gives individuals and organisations the right to ask for information held by a 
public body, and while there are certain exemptions that can be used, by and 
large those public bodies are obliged by an Act of Parliament to disclose that 
information. For example, it was as a result of an FOI request that information 
about MPs’ expenses was released in 2009.

3.3 Member Management Committee considered a report about Information 
Governance Training at its meeting on 9th June 2012. Following consideration 
of this report, three Information Governance workshops were organised, at 
which a total of 19 members attended. High level training on Information 
Governance is delivered annually as part of the new Member induction 
programme. This training has been supported with communications to 
Members relating to specific information governance matters, such as 
information security issues related to email communications.

3.4 Most Members, if not all, now use technologies to process and store 
information. Because of the nature of their work, much of this information will 
be either personal or sensitive personal data. It is important that all Members 
handle and process personal information in accordance with the Data 
Protection Act and understand basic information governance practice around 
information security and information sharing. As a result of a request for IG 
training from Members with Adult Social Care responsibilities it is proposed 
that an information governance training and awareness programme for 
Member development is set up on the following basis:

 All LCC Members undertake basic IG training utilising an e-learning  
training package. This can be undertaken individually and at a time to 
suit individual Members. This training will provide Members with an 
elementary understanding of the Data Protection Principles and 
information security.

Page 7



 In addition the Corporate Information Governance Team offer 
classroom-based sessions in order to address issues more specific to 
Members, especially in relation to the handling of sensitive personal 
data.

 Newly Elected Members continue to receive training on information 
governance as part of their induction programme.

4 Corporate Considerations

4.1 Consultation and Engagement 

4.1.2       This report continues the process of engaging with Members about the most       
appropriate way of providing training and development to Members about 
information governance.  Consultation has taken place with the Director of Adult 
Social Care, the Head of IM&T in Adult Social Care, Legal Services and with the 
council’s Senior Information Risk Owner through the Information Management 
Board.

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration

4.2.1 All policies have been developed as part of the Information Governance Project 
which has developed a training programme for all staff and partners with respect to 
information governance. Equality, diversity, cohesion and integration are all being 
considered as part of this programme of work. This refers to the way in which the 
training is being delivered as well as how the policies will impact on staff and 
partners.

4.3 Council policies and City Priorities

4.3.1 The recommendations put forward in this report relate to ensuring that everyone 
within and associated with the council who handles and processes council 
information has an understanding of information governance policies.

4.3.2 The information governance policies relate to the aims, priorities and performance 
measures of the Council Business Plan and City Priority Plans.  

4.4 Resources and value for money 

4.4.1 Resources are already in place for the delivery of information governance e-
learning for all staff. There are no financial or budgetary considerations with regard 
to classroom based training as this would be delivered in-house by members of the 
Corporate Information Governance Team.

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In

4.5.1 Whilst there is no legal requirement to ensure Members understand and comply 
with the council’s information governance policies, there may be implications for 
the council if they inadvertently cause an information security breach to the Data 
Protection Act, and it follows therefore, that Members should obtain the same 
training, guidance and advice in this respect as officers.

4.5.2 There are no restrictions on access to information contained in this report.

Page 8



4.6 Risk Management

4.6.1 The proposed training for Members is about not only making them aware of key 
aspects of council information governance policies and good information handling 
practice, but helping to reduce the risk of them inadvertently contributing to a 
potential information security incident.

5 Conclusions

5.1          This report provides Member Management Committee with information concerning 
the potential risks (both financial and reputational) around the handling of personal 
information, and recommends providing them with suitable training and 
development to mitigate against and reduce the risk of Member involvement in an 
information incident.

6 Recommendations

6.1        Member Management Committee is asked to note the contents of the report   
and support and approve the proposals to train Members on information 
governance as outlined in this report.

7 Background documents1 

1 The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period 
of four years following the date of the relevant meeting.  Accordingly this list does not include 
documents containing exempt or confidential information, or any published works.  Requests to 
inspect any background documents should be submitted to the report author.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes - 15th September 2015
	7 Information Governance Training

